
                                                             
 

INSTRUCTIONAL PLANNING 
COUNCIL 

 
MEETING MINUTES OF 

April 21, 2023 
9:30-11:30am, Zoom 

 
Members Present: Jessica Kaven, Chris Burns, Chloe Knott, Sarah Cortez, Alison Field, Erik 
Gaspar,  Lisa Palmer, Natalie Melgar, Jose Manzo, James Carranza, Jill Sumstad, Karen Engel 
Members Absent: Allison Hughes, Susan Mahoney, Chialin Hsieh, Candice Nance, Alex Claxton 
Guests: Alessandro Riva, Hannah-Joy Haw, Niall Adler, Megan Rodriguez Antone, Ameer 
Thompson, Daryan Chan, Jose Garcia, Mayra Arellano, Althea Kippes, Lezlee Ware 
  

 

1) Adoption and Approval of Agenda 

Motion – To adopt and approve agenda: M/S: Lisa Palmer, Erik Gaspar                                                                                        
Discussion – none  
Abstentions – none 
Approval – approved unanimously 
 
 

2) Approval of Meeting Minutes (April 7, 2023) 

Motion – To approve meeting minutes of March 17, 2023: M/S: Lisa 
Palmer, Alison Field 

Discussion – none 
Abstentions – none 
Approval – approved unanimously 

 
 

3) Marketing 
Megan Rodriguez Antone, Alessandro Riva, Niall Adler, Hannah-Joy Haw, and Jose Garcia 
presented on behalf of Marketing:  



 

 

 



 

 

 



 

 

 



 

 

 



 
 
The team shared the following resources: 
 
Link to Online Degrees: https://canadacollege.edu/degrees/online-programs.php 
Marketing Form: https://canadacollege.edu/marketing/requestform.php 
A&R website: https://canadacollege.edu/admissions/ 
Campus Hours page: https://canadacollege.edu/campushours/index.php 
College Calendar: https://events.canadacollege.edu/ 
Submit your events here: https://events.canadacollege.edu/submit/ 
Flickr: https://www.flickr.com/photos/134656677@N03/albums 
Academic Dates on the College Calendar: 
https://events.canadacollege.edu/all/categories/Academic%20Calendar 
Marketing email: canmarketing@smccd.edu 
 
Lisa Palmer thanked the group for the updates and wonderful progress presented. Lisa asked who 
she should contact for assistance with website updating. Megan shared that this would be Jose 
Garcia. Jessica Kaven thanked the team for their efforts. Jessica asked Alessandro to share screen to 
show the committee the various ways folks can be routed to the online degrees page from the 

https://canadacollege.edu/degrees/online-programs.php
https://canadacollege.edu/marketing/requestform.php
https://canadacollege.edu/admissions/
https://canadacollege.edu/campushours/index.php
https://events.canadacollege.edu/
https://events.canadacollege.edu/submit/
https://www.flickr.com/photos/134656677@N03/albums
https://events.canadacollege.edu/all/categories/Academic%20Calendar
mailto:canmarketing@smccd.edu


college homepage. Jessica thanked him for incorporating IPC’s feedback so well. Alison Field 
appreciated the great work that the team has completed. Alison asked for clarification regarding 
how specific initiatives such as the social media campaigns for Black History Month are decided 
and who is participating in them. She asked if they were initiated by academic programs or if 
marketing seeks out information from these programs? She asked if the History Department wants 
to be part of that effort, do they initiate and is there a way to find out what upcoming campaigns 
are? Alison highlighted that many programs do not have full time faculty members, and while they 
are doing great things, it is important to assist adjunct faculty in understanding how they can and 
should be contributing to these efforts. Niall shared that folks are welcome and encouraged to share 
ideas for campaigns, and that they often work with on campus groups to publicize known events 
that occur each year.  
 
 

4) Dual Enrollment Update 
 
Mayra Arellano and Daryan Chan presented on behalf of this item.  
 

 



 

 
 



 

 



 
 
Natalie Melgar noted that she is a Middle College student and shared from her perspective 
that having current students involved in summer recruitment makes a difference and makes 
the experience more personal and encouraging. She also suggested sharing this information 
with Student Leadership at the various high schools so they can distribute this information 
to their student body in different ways than announcements or emails may. Lisa Palmer 
asked for more information regarding tutoring for Dual Enrollment students. Additionally, 
Lisa asked if the faculty coordinator has a training/background in dual enrollment pedagogy 
and high school classroom management. Lisa noted that a concern for the English 
department is that they are being asked to teach these courses and are not properly trained 
to do so.  Mayra noted that any Dual Enrollment student has access to our campus 
resources, including tutoring. In the future, Mayra noted that she will look into embedded 
tutoring as an option. Daryan shared that he has not had specific training in Dual 
Enrollment pedagogy but he has worked with Dual Enrollment students for about 17 years, 
having taught high school since about 2006 through the three campuses within the district. 
Daryan shared that he has experience working with learning communities such as Upward 
Scholars programs, and TRIO programs which provided him experience working with 
students of varying backgrounds and helped him consider how their skills and learning 
development may differ compared to adult learners. Daryan also noted that he has been 
working with Jessica Kaven and Lezlee Ware as Faculty Teaching and Learning 
Coordinators to gain extra insight into additional recommendations they may have. Daryan 
highlighted that this is a group effort and while this has only been his first week in the role, 
he looks forward to learning more.  
 
 

 
 



5) IPC Bylaws 
• Faculty co-chair term (increase from 1 year to 2 years) 
• Possible member inclusion of OER/ZTC Coordinator 

 
Jessica Kaven projected the bylaws of the committee. She noted that updating the 
names of two positions, Instructional Assessment Coordinator, and Faculty Equity 
Coordinator, will be necessary. Additionally, Sarah Harmon, the OER/ZTC 
Coordinator, has requested the committee consider adding her role as a voting member.  
 
Lisa Palmer noted that this seems like a huge committee, and considered how this might 
impact committee structure/process. Additionally, Jessica noted that the faculty co-chair 
role for the next cycle will be voted on at a future meeting before the end of the school 
year. The proposal is to elect a co-chair for a two year term as opposed to a one year 
term. Lisa noted that the committee composition seems lopsided with these proposed 
changes with many faculty, but also considered that this may bring new insight into the 
committee discussions. Jill Sumstad shared that she agreed with the two year term, and 
also asked if adjunct faculty can apply. Jessica clarified that Curriculum Committee 
Chair, Instructional Assessment Coordinator, Honors Transfer Program Coordinator, 
and Faculty Equity Coordinator are college wide positions and open to all faculty to 
apply. The Librarian and Counselor positions are often filled by adjunct faculty as well 
in addition to the faculty members-at-large. Alison Field noted that she does agree with 
Lisa that the committee is getting very large, which can bring some difficulties. She 
asked if Sarah Harmon had information of which Alison is not aware as to why the 
ZTC/OER Coordinator role should be a voting member on the committee, as it is not 
obvious to her. Jessica noted that she can follow up with Sarah to obtain this 
information. Jessica recalled that Sarah was interested in ZTC/OER perspective and 
voice with the committee. Jessica noted that the bylaws can be considered at any point. 
The inclusion of the ZTC/OER Coordinator will be further discussed at a future 
meeting.  
 

Motion – To change the term of the IPC Co-Chair from one year to two 
years: M/S: Lisa Palmer, Erik Gaspar                                                                                        
Discussion – none  
Abstentions – none 
Approval – approved unanimously 

 
 

6) Equity and Antiracism Planning Council (EAPC) Updates 
 
Alison Field and Karen Engel presented on behalf of this item: 
 



 

 

 
 



 

 

 
 



EAPC Website: https://canadacollege.edu/eapc/index.php 
 

 

 
 
Lisa Palmer asked if the meetings are in person or via zoom. Alison shared that starting 
April 25, meetings will be both in person and on zoom. The committee shared their thanks 
to Alison for her hard work in establishing this council. Jessica noted that it would be nice 
to have a consistent share out from the Equity and Antiracism Planning Council to IPC so 
the groups can collaborate and be intentional about supporting one another in working 
within an equity minded lens. Chris Burns shared that he has already had the chance to 
work with the EAPC and noted how great the work they are doing has been and how 
meaningful this will be for the campus.  

 
7) Strategic Enrollment Management (SEM) Operational Plan 

• Planning Process 
• Feedback on Draft #2 of Operational Plan 

 
Lisa Palmer shared the SEM has been discussed over the past several weeks, and most 
recently, it was brought to PBC, and the one issue that has not been addressed on the 
plan is who will be responsible for which items. Lisa noted that PBC did not want to 
vote on the SEM until responsible parties were assigned, as they felt that is where 

https://canadacollege.edu/eapc/index.php


accountability lies.  
 
The group was directed to the most recent version of the SEM here: 
https://canadacollege.edu/planningbudgetingcouncil/2022-23/sem-operational-plan-2023-2025-
as-of-april-17-2023.pdf 
 
It was noted that this section is the area in question by PBC: 
 

 
 
Karen Engel suggested that IPC as a committee may want to review the plan and begin 
to consider which of the objectives they as a body would take on, and which would 
make most sense falling within this body’s scope. The group began looking through 
each objective to decide if they seemed appropriate to fall within IPC’s responsibility. 
Recognizing that there may not be time to review each objective, it was proposed that 
the Cabinet subcommittee who has been working on this document attempt to fill in the 
chart initially.  

 
 

8) Increasing Engagement, Involvement, and Communication in Instructional Program 
Review 
 
• Faculty Leadership Roles 

https://canadacollege.edu/planningbudgetingcouncil/2022-23/sem-operational-plan-2023-2025-as-of-april-17-2023.pdf
https://canadacollege.edu/planningbudgetingcouncil/2022-23/sem-operational-plan-2023-2025-as-of-april-17-2023.pdf


• Faculty Reassignment 
• Instructional Committee Members 

 
Jessica Kaven presented on behalf of this item: 
 

 
 

 



 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 
 
 
Lisa shared that the committee should be applauding themselves, noting that there is 
increased participation when zoom has been an option. Lisa appreciated the data. Erik 
Gaspar highlighted the question of who ought to be in the room/who has a responsibility to 
be in the room. Alison appreciated those who were present at the events, and also 
considered who was missing and why it is important those particular roles be present. She 
agreed that the President and VPs should be present, but felt it might be helpful to articulate 
why. Althea Kippes noted that having the President/VPs there is important as many of them 
do not know what the various programs do and it would be helpful for them to hear the 
presentations to learn more. Alison suggested that this could also be an opportunity for 
Marketing & Outreach to become more familiar with program offerings.   
 
 

9) IPC Membership 2023-2024 
 
Jessica Kaven shared the proposed membership for next year:  



 
 

10) Curriculum Report 
 

Lisa Palmer presented on behalf of this item. She thanked all of the faculty who have been 
working diligently to get their curriculum course outlines of record reviewed for this term that 
were due and noted the campus is on track for completion this year. Secondly, Lisa noted that 
there are alignment issues that are being discussed at District Curriculum Committee having to 
do with Title V and Ethnic Studies, which our campus has already addressed. In addition, there 
is another issue up for discussion focusing on language that states in order to obtain a degree at 
our college, a student has to have obtained 12 units in their major at the college where they are 
receiving the degree. The Board policy states that only students coming in from 
elsewhere/transfer students need to have 50% at one college and that the district/Transfer 
Evaluation Service would like to see the district align in language. Jessica asked if there was 
strong logic for wanting 12 units to be completed within a student’s major. Lisa noted that 
CSM faculty have argued that this is necessary, otherwise they would be awarding degrees to 
students who have never taken courses in their major area of focus at that particular college. 
Lisa highlighted that many students are taking online courses that are available at each of the 
three campuses, not necessarily focusing on which campus but rather which course fits their 
needs. It further complicates the issue that courses are associated with a home campus and 



would count toward this rule, when students opt to take them online, and do not have to 
physically be present on a particular campus. Ameer Thompson noted that from a practical and 
equity perspective, this is a necessary conversation to have as he has noted several instances of 
students scrambling at the last second to seek exemptions from that rule because graduation 
would not otherwise be possible. Chloe Knott shared that students have expressed general 
confusion around this issue. She shared that one student expressed concern for taking classes at 
different campuses for fear of having two different college transcripts and another student 
sharing that 50% of the courses need to be taken at that campus to graduate from that college. 
She highlighted how this shows there is significant confusion from the perspective of the 
student. Lisa agreed that there is a lot of confusion in language present. 
 
Jessica highlighted that a transcript can be generated through WebSMART and it does not 
indicate at which campus the student took the course, and questioned if students are having to 
track this themselves. Erik Gaspar shared that it is his understanding that when you run an 
unofficial transcript, there is a 3 digit code associated with each campus. Ameer added that this 
information is also available on banner, but was not clear if this was easily accessible to 
students. Karen Engel shared with the group the most recent definitions of the Chancellor’s 
Office Student Success Metrics: https://www.calpassplus.org/Launchboard/Student-Success-Metrics-
MDD Karen highlighted that the language is important to highlight what degree or certificate the student 
is trying to obtain, and from which college, as requirements can be different. Lisa added that alignment 
across the district is a focus as well. Jill Sumstad asked if students complete 50% of courses at two 
colleges, which college would they receive the degree from and why. Jose Manzo shared that they 
would petition for a degree at the respective college. Typically, it is 12 units of residency at a college, 
but he does see the issue with the 50% rule of major courses to be completed at a college. Karen also 
highlighted that support services are aligned with degree completion, and interest area success team 
students are served by our staff and faculty in those programs based on their program of study, and 
whether they are trying to get a degree from our college. Karen shared that it is important to consider 
not only where a student is engaged, but where they are getting services and how that is tied and defined 
by where they are trying to get a degree or certificate.   

 
11) Good of the order 

 
 

12) Adjournment 
Motion – To adjourn the meeting: M/S: Lisa Palmer, Chris Burns 
Discussion – none 
Abstentions – none 
Approval – approved unanimously 
 
a) Meeting adjourned at 11:32 am. 

https://www.calpassplus.org/Launchboard/Student-Success-Metrics-MDD
https://www.calpassplus.org/Launchboard/Student-Success-Metrics-MDD

	INSTRUCTIONAL PLANNING COUNCIL
	MEETING MINUTES OF
	1) Adoption and Approval of Agenda

